Catawba United Methodist Church History
In observance of the 150th church anniversary
(First written by Donna Brown prior to 1990; revised in 2025)

Catawba United Methodist Church has undergone many changes in its one hundred fifty years in existence. In its early years it was known as a Methodist Episcopal Church and all historical data indicate that the first Methodist church in Catawba was called Smyrna.
A Methodist church formed prior to 1842, known as Providence church, may have been the mother church of Smyrna. It was located one and one-half miles southwest of Catawba on what is now Highway 10. A cemetery is all that is left of this church.
Smyrna was located about a mile southwest of the present church, was built of logs donated by Caney Lowrance, and was reportedly paid for in gold. Smyrna was on the Newton circuit in the South Carolina Conference. There seem to be no records indicating when Smyrna was organized but a deed dated November 27, 1845 between the Turner and Sherrill families mentions the new “Smeyny” church property. 
What is known about Smyrna Methodist Church comes from the Clapp (Class) Book, a small book containing information about church members from 1860-1876. It contains names of both blacks and whites and mentions many of the pastors who first served this charge. The first page is inscribed, “Dear brethren live in peace and the God of peace shall be with you. Pray for us your brethren in Christ. Remember to observe the Friday before each Q.M. (Quarterly Meeting) as fast day.” Records were kept on members in three areas. Their “State in Life” indicated whether they were married, single, or widowed. Their “State in Grace” was marked with a “B” for believer, although in many instances this area was left blank. Finally, each member’s “State in Church” was reported. It appears that the congregation dwindled over the years. 
Some members married and moved away or moved their membership to other churches. Others “withdrew in disorder” and a few were “expelled”. It has been speculated that a decline in membership may have prompted members to conceive of organizing a new church in Catawba. 
On March 17, 1876, a church meeting was held at Catawba Station with eight men and sixteen women present. The minutes report that “the arrangements for the new church is progressing”. The following families were represented at this meeting:  Drum, Sigmon, Adderholt, Houston, Lowrance, Sherrill, Witherspoon, Cline, Bost, Wyckoff, Long, Harvell, Lael, and Chenault.
This new church had its beginnings in the Academy, a private school located a short distance to the left of the present church on Central Avenue. Several acres were purchased and then donated to the church from James H. Sherrill and others.  Land was acquired later from Mike and Salina Rufty for use as a cemetery.  Costs of the church lot and cemetery were $50.00 and $25.00, respectively. It is reported that the church at Catawba was completed in 1878 without any outstanding debts. 
In 1885, the Catawba Circuit of the North Carolina Conference was formed and one pastor was sent to minister to five churches: Catawba, Bethlehem, Pisgah, Hopewell, and Concord. Each church helped to pay the minister’s annual salary of $625.00. That same year, plans were begun to build a parsonage in Catawba. Upon its completion, each church was asked to help pay for the furnishings. All the churches, combined, managed to appropriate $81.40 for this. The original, two-story frame parsonage was located at the present site of the Catawba Creamery. It wasn’t until 1954 that Catawba became a station or one-church charge.
Many other aspects of the church have changed over the years. In 1924, Sunday school rooms and large columns were added to the original brick structure. A new sanctuary was built during 1947-1948 and was dedicated on March 20, 1949. The time also came to construct a new parsonage and this was done on land belonging to Manson Wilkinson, located behind the church and across the railroad tracks on 2nd Avenue, NE. The brick parsonage was dedicated on April 11, 1954. 
The present sanctuary has a seating capacity of two hundred and eighty. (Note: Some pews have been removed to make way for a sound booth and a baby grand piano.) There are thirty memorial stained glass windows, crimson red carpeting and matching pew cushions, Later additions include a carillon system, an Allen digital electronic organ, and a projection system.  Forty-eight different pastors have served Catawba UMC since its beginning. Several of these pastors were in attendance at a centennial celebration held in 1976. Church members dressed in period attire and a bountiful meal was enjoyed in the front yard of the church.  Annual homecoming celebrations were first held in the fall of the year and were then moved to the first Sunday in June. Anyone with former or present connections to the church were always invited to attend and many did so. 
In the early 1990’s the congregation began remodeling an adjacent, 10,000 square foot warehouse building – and former hosiery mill – for use as a Family Life Center. Funding for the $370,000 project came from The Duke Endowment, The Statesville District Mission Society, church members and groups, and special fund-raising events. The building has been used for numerous church and community activities over the past 30+ years. 
Although the building and its furnishings have changed over the years, the church itself; that is, its people and their faith in God have been constant. We only pray that the same may be said for Catawba UMC when another 150 years have passed. 
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